
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

1633 GARDEN HIGHWAY 
SACRAMENTO, CA 95833 

FRIDAY, AUGUST 9, 2019 
8:00 A.M. 

AGENDA 

1. PRELIMINARY

1.1. Call Meeting to Order
1.2. Approval of Agenda
1.3. Pledge of Allegiance
1.4. Conflict of Interest (Any Agenda items that might be a conflict of interest to any Trustee should

be identified at this time by the Trustee involved) 

2. PRESENTATIONS

No presentations scheduled for this meeting. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (NON-AGENDA ITEMS)

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so under the 
Public Comments section. Speaker times are limited to three (3) minutes per person on any matter 
within RD 1000’s jurisdiction, not on the Agenda. 

Public comments on agenda or non-agenda items during the Board of Trustees meeting are for the 
purpose of informing the Board to assist Trustees in making decisions. Please address your comments 
to the President of the Board.  The Board President will request responses from staff, if appropriate. 
Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the Board from taking any immediate 
action on an item which does not appear on the agenda unless the item meets stringent statutory 
requirements (see California Government Code Section 54954.2 (a)). 

Public comments during Board meetings are not for question and answers.  Should you have questions, 
please do not ask them as part of your public comments to the Board.  Answers will not be provided 
during Board meetings.  Please present your questions to any member of RD 1000 staff via e-mail, 
telephone, letter, or in-person at a time other than during a Board meeting. 

Board Packet 
Page 1 of 157



4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

4.1. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: Update on activities since the July 2019 Board of Trustees
Meeting. 

4.2. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT:  Update on activities since the July 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting. 

4.3. DISTRICT COUNSEL’S REPORT: Update on activities since the July 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Board considers all Consent Calendar items to be routine and will adopt them in one motion.  There 
will be no discussion on these items before the Board votes on the motion, unless Trustees, staff or the
public request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar.

5.1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Approval of Minutes from July 12, 2019 Regular Board Meeting. 

5.2. TREASURER’S REPORT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for July 2019. 

5.3. EXPENDITURE REPORT: Review and Accept Report for July 2019. 

5.4. BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT: Review and Accept Report for July 2019. 

5.5. AUTHORIZATION TO GRANT EASEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-
8-1 Authorizing General Manager to Grant Easement Deed to Sacramento Municipal Utility
District.

5.6. AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT EASEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-
8-2 Authorizing General Manager to Accept Grant of Facility Easement Deed from Greenbriar
Project Owner, LLC.

5.7. AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT EASEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-
8-3 Authorizing General Manager to Accept Grant of Access Easement Deed from Greenbriar
Project Owner, LLC.

5.8. AUTHORIZATION TO SUBMIT GRANT APPLICATION: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution 
No. 2019-8-4 Authorizing General Manager to Submit Application for Grant Funding with State 
of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 
2019/2020. 

Board Packet 
Page 2 of 157



5.9. AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE FUNDING AGREEMENT: Review and Consider Adoption of 
Resolution No. 2019-8-5 Authorizing General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State 
of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 
2019/2020. 

6. SCHEDULED ITEMS

6.1. SENATE BILL 415 (HUESO) – VOTER PARTICIPATION: Review and Discuss Impacts of Senate Bill
415 (Hueso). 

7. BOARD OF TRUSTEE’S COMMENTS

7.1. BOARD ACTIVITY UPDATES:

7.1.1.   RD 1000 Committee Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 
• Executive Committee (Smith & Barandas) July 31, 2019

7.1.2.   RD 1000 Committees No Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 
• Finance Committee (Gilbert, Harris, & Smith)
• Legal Committee (Avdis, Barandas, & Harris)
• Operations Committee (Barandas, Christophel, & Smith)
• Personnel Committee (Harris, Burns, Christophel)
• Urbanization Committee (Burns, Gilbert, & Avdis)

7.1.3.   Trustee’s Comments/Reports 

8. CLOSED SESSION

8.1. No Closed Session Items

9. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

9.1. No Closed Session Items

10. ADJOURN

Board Packet 
Page 3 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 

TITLE: General Manager’s Report – August 2019  

SUBJECT: Update on activities since the July 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000’s (RD 1000; District) General Manager, Kevin King, to provide verbal 
report of work performed during the month of July 2019. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency – July 2019 Board Meeting
2. LAFCO Nomination Form

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 4 of 157



www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/cache/2/qxa230wgtilt24czjshubp5g/1261308062019082959457.htm 1/4

Board of Directors Agenda of

July 18, 2019 - 3:00 pm
Sacramento City Hall Historic Hearing Room 201

915 I Street, Sacramento, CA  95814

Directors/Alternates Present:  Barandas, Burns, Conant, Harris, Hedges, Holloway,
Kennedy, Nava, Nottoli, and Schmidt

Directors Absent:  Ashby, Jennings, and Shah

ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS - no public comments were received

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Resolution No. 2019-096 - Approving the Supplemental Assessment Roll
and Setting the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Assessment Rate for the Sacramento
Area Flood Control Agency Operations and Maintenance Assessment
District No. 1 (Campbell)

Motion by Director Conant and seconded by Director Holloway to approve
Resolution No. 2019-096.

AYES: Barandas, Burns, Conant, Harris, Hedges, Holloway, Kennedy,
Nava, Nottoli, and Schmidt

NOES: (None)
ABSTAIN: (None)
RECUSE: (None)
ABSENT: Ashby, Jennings, and Shah

CLOSED SESSION

Government Code Section 54956.8 - Conference with Real Property
Negotiators

AGENDA ITEM 4.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 5 of 157

http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421036
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421042
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421038
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421048
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421037


8/6/2019 <A>

www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/cache/2/qxa230wgtilt24czjshubp5g/1261308062019082959457.htm 2/4

Property: A portion of Board of Equalization Lot Numbers 9 and 10 as
shown on the State Board of Equalization Land Identification maps,
entitled “Alignment, Sacramento & Woodland Railroad Company”, June
30, 1913.
Agency Negotiators: Richard M. Johnson, Jason D. Campbell, M. Holly
Gilchrist
Negotiating Party:  Sierra Northern Railway
Under Negotiation:  Price and terms of payment

Motion by Director Conant and seconded by Director Barandas, authorizing the
Executive Director or his designee, to execute an Easement Purchase and Sale
Agreement and Option Agreement with Sierra Northern Railway for property in
Yolo County to be dated April 18, 2019 for the American River Common Features
2016 Project.  The terms and conditions will be made public following execution
of the Agreement.

AYES: Barandas, Burns, Conant, Harris, Hedges, Holloway, Kennedy,
Nava, Nottoli, and Schmidt

NOES: (None)
ABSTAIN: (None)
RECUSE: (None)
ABSENT: Ashby, Jennings, and Shah

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

2. Information - Executive Director’s Report for July 18, 2019 (Johnson) –
no action

CONSENT MATTERS

Motion by Director Holloway and seconded by Director Conant to approve the
Action Summary of June 20, 2019 and Resolution Nos:  2019-097; 2019-098;
2019-099; 2019-100; 2019-101; 2019-102; 2019-103; and 2019-104 of the
Consent Matters.

AYES: Barandas, Burns, Conant, Harris, Hedges, Holloway, Kennedy,
Nava, Nottoli, and Schmidt

NOES: (None)
ABSTAIN: (None)
RECUSE: (None)
ABSENT: Ashby, Jennings, and Shah

3. Adopting the Action Summary for June 20, 2019 (Russell)

4. Resolution No. 2019-097 - Authorizing Levy and Collection of Sacramento
Area Flood Control Agency Consolidated Capital Assessment District No. 2

Board Packet 
Page 6 of 157

http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421044
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421049
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421039
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421050
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421051


8/6/2019 <A>

www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/cache/2/qxa230wgtilt24czjshubp5g/1261308062019082959457.htm 3/4

and Natomas Basin Local Assessment District Assessments for Fiscal Year
2019-20 (Campbell)

5. Resolution No. 2019-098 - Amending Resolution Nos. 2019-011 and
2019-012 Setting the Time and Locations for SAFCA Meetings for March
2019 Through February 2020 to Authorize the Executive Director to a
Change a Meeting Location When Necessary (Johnson)

6. Resolution No. 2019-099 - Approving the 2019 Urban Level of Flood
Protection Adequate Progress Annual Report for Distribution to the City of
Sacramento, County of Sacramento, Sutter County and the Central Valley
Flood Protection Board (Bardini)

7. Resolution No. 2019-100 - Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 1422 with Gualco Consulting for Local
Government Relations, Community Outreach and Right of Way Support
Activities Related to the American River Common Features 2016 Project
(Campbell)

8. Resolution No. 2019-101 - Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute
a Contract with Kleinfelder, Inc. for Geotechnical and General Engineering
Consulting Services (Ghelfi)

9. Resolution No. 2019-102 - Approving Contract Documents And
Authorizing The Executive Director to Advertise for Bids for the SAFCA
Dry Creek Fence Rehabilitation and Replacement Project, Phase 2,
Sacramento County, California, Contract No. 4454 (Sorgen)

10. Resolution No. 2019-103 - Approving Contract Documents and
Authorizing the Executive Director to  Advertise Contract No. 4471 for Bid
- North Area Levee Improvement Project (2019), City of Sacramento,
Sacramento County, California (Ghelfi)

11. Resolution No. 2019-104 - Authorizing the Executive Director to
Cooperate with the Cosumnes Subbasin Working Group in Preparing a
Proposition 68 Grant Application to Secure Supplemental State Funding
for Completion of the Cosumnes Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability
Plan and to Contribute up to $25,000 to the Cost of Preparing the Grant
Application (Bardini)

RECEIVE & FILE – no action

12. Report of Construction Contract Change Orders Issued Under Delegated
Authority for the FourthLarsen Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

Board Packet 
Page 7 of 157

http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421051
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421052
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421053
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421054
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421055
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421056
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421057
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421058
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421041
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421059


8/6/2019 <A>

www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/cache/2/qxa230wgtilt24czjshubp5g/1261308062019082959457.htm 4/4

13. Report of Insurance Claims Settled Under Delegated Settlement Authority
for the Fourth Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

14. Report of Professional Services Agreements Issued Under Delegated
Authority for the Fourth Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

15. Status Reports of Environmental Consulting Master Services Agreements
for the Fourth Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

16. Report of Real Property Transaction Where Just Compensation is Less
than $500,000 Executed Under Delegated Authority for the Fourth
Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

17. Status Reports of Right of Way Consulting Master Services  Agreements
for the Fourth Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

18. Report of California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act
(CUPCCA) Contracts Issued Under Delegated Authority for the Fourth
Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

19. Status Reports of Flood Risk Management Planning Master Services
Agreements for the Fourth Quarter, Fiscal Year 2018-19 (Gilchrist)

ADJOURN

Respectfully submitted,

Lyndee Russell

Board Packet 
Page 8 of 157

http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421060
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421061
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421062
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421063
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421064
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421065
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421066
http://www.agendanet.saccounty.net/sirepub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=summary&itemid=421043


AGENDA ITEM 4.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Board Packet 
Page 9 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 10 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 11 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 

TITLE: Superintendent’s Report – August 2019 

SUBJECT: Update on activities since the July 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to inform the Board and serve as official record of the activities the 
District’s field staff engaged in for the month of July 2019. As well as provide information 
regarding District facility use and local weather impacts on District facilities and river levels. 

The Superintendent report was created to provide monthly updates to the Board of Trustees on 
field activities within the District boundaries, as well as provide a historical record. This allows for 
the District and the public the opportunity to refer back to data trends over time regarding the 
weather impact on District facilities, crew activities and local river and canal conditions as well as 
general District activities from month to month. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

There are no staff recommendations, information provided is strictly informational. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Superintendent’s Report Data Sheet

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/01/2019 
Donald Caldwell, Superintendent 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 12 of 157



  Superintendent’s Report – July 2019 

River Levels: 
Bannon     H: 7.79’ 

L: 7.03’ 

River H: 10.05’ 
L: 7.98’ 

Rain Fall Totals: 

Rain totals for the month of 
July were 0”  

Rain totals since July 1st were 
0”  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

River Levels in Feet

Bannon River High Bannon River Low

River River High River River Low

0 00 0

J U L Y S I N C E  J U L Y

RAIN FALL LEVELS IN INCHES
Current Year 19/20 Last Year 18/19

AGENDA ITEM 4.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 13 of 157



The chart below represents the various activities our field crew spent their time working on during the 
month of July 2019. 

RD 1000 Field Crew *Field Hours Worked Activity 
34 Ground Maintenance 
40 Pumping Plant Maintenance 
3.5 Pump Rounds 
8 Ditch Maintenance 

12 Levee Maintenance 
76 Garbage 

258 Weed Control 
361 Mowing 
18 Rodent Control 

144 Equipment Repairs 

*Hours worked do not include: sick, vacation, holiday or Superintendent’s time

Pumping 
Plant 4 pumping for dewatering at Reach D for the Natomas Levee Project. 

Pumping Plant Pump Hours and A/F 
Plant 4 Pump # 1 5.5 hours and 31.35 AF 

Unauthorized Encampment Activity 
The District spent a total of 64 crew hours on unauthorized encampments for a total cost to the district 
of $5,393.06. This total includes labor*, equipment costs and dump fees. Miscellaneous/Other time is 
supervisor time spent on site monitoring crew activities and safety concerns.  
*labor costs only include hourly wages and does not include a weighted rate for each employee 

Safety topics for the month of July: Personal Protection Equipment (PPE): safety glasses, hard hats, 
safety vests, gloves, earplugs. Crew must use these items for their protection.   

19%

56%

25%

TOTAL HOURS
64

Levee Maintenance/Repair Garbage Misc/Other

15%

51%

22%

12%

TOTAL COST
$5,393.06

Levee Maintenance/Repair Garbage

Misc/Other Dump Fees

Board Packet 
Page 14 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.3 

TITLE: District Counsel’s Report – August 2019  

SUBJECT: Update on activities since the July 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000’s (RD 1000; District) General Counsel, Jim Day, to provide verbal report 
of work performed during the month of July 2019. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

None  

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 15 of 157



 
 

DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1 
 

 
TITLE:  Approval of Minutes  
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes from July 12, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This staff report is intended to serve as the official record of monthly meetings of the Board of 
Trustees. This document details meeting participants, proof of items discussed, summaries of 
board meeting discussion, and vote actions taken by the Board. Staff recommends Board 
approval of the July 12, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes.  

BACKGROUND: 

The Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code Section 54950 et seq.) governs meetings by public 
commissions, boards and councils, and public agencies in California. The Act facilitates public 
transparency and public participation in local government decisions. The Act also contains 
specific exemptions from the open meeting requirements where governmental agencies have a 
demonstrated need for confidentiality.  
 

To further comply with transparency, Reclamation District 1000 documents monthly meetings of 
its Board of Trustees through Board Minutes. Reclamation District 1000 also maintains a 
historical archive of Board meeting Minutes since 1912. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff Recommends the Board approve the Minutes from the July 12, 2019 Board of Trustees 
Meeting. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

None. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. July 12, 2019, Board Meeting Minutes 
 

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 08/01/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 
 
 
____________________________________________    Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 16 of 157



 
 

Reclamation District No. 1000 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

 

1633 Garden Highway 

Sacramento, CA 95833  

 

JULY 12, 2019 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

The Reclamation District No. 1000 Board of Trustees met in regular session on this date at the 

District Office. Present were: Board President Jeff Smith; Vice President Tom Barandas; Trustee 

David Christophel; Trustee Chris Burns; Trustee Thom Gilbert General Manager Kevin King; 

District Counsel Jim Day; Administrative Services Manager Joleen Gutierrez; District 

Superintendent Don Caldwell; and Administrative Assistant Christina Forehand. 

Absent: Trustees Nick Avdis and Fred Harris 

1. Preliminary 

The meeting was called to order by Board President, Jeff Smith.  

 

After the Pledge of Allegiance, led by Counsel Jim Day, the Board was given the 

opportunity to disclose any potential conflicts of interest for items listed on the agenda. 

There were no conflicts of interest to disclose.  

 

2. Presentations 

No presentations were scheduled for this meeting. 

 

3. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

4. Informational Items 

 

4.1 – General Manager’s Report: GM King provided a verbal report of work performed 

during the month of June 2019. 

 

GM King reported a top priority of his has been working on AB 137 (Cooper) Facilities 

of the State Plan of Flood Control. This bill would allow flood protection agencies to 

AGENDA ITEM 5.1 

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 

Board Packet 
Page 17 of 157



 

ensure protection of essential public infrastructure from catastrophic damage and 

would give local law enforcement agencies the ability to immediately remove threats 

to the infrastructure. AB 137 also would prevent the concealment of the 

infrastructure, which is a huge problem for RD 1000 to be able to monitor and inspect 

our facilities. GM King shared AB 137 recently passed the Senate Natural Resources 

Committee without opposition. The bill will be scheduled for hearing in Senate 

Appropriations in August. If passed, the bill would then go to the Senate Floor for a 

vote.  This is a non-urgency bill that if passed, would take effect on January 2020. GM 

will reach out to ACWA and CSDA requesting AB 137 letters of support.   

 

GM King reported progress is being made with repairing damage from unauthorized 

encampments (excavations, stairs, leveling). President Smith inquired whether 

District security patrols have been on the lookout for levee damage. Superintendent 

Caldwell stated patrols are the same because security officers do not have the 

expertise to assess sites.  District staff assesses damage and schedules repairs once 

encroachments are removed. 

 

GM King advised the Board of a Steelhead Creek clean-up this Fall and asked the Board 

to determine the District’s level of support. The Board agreed to support the next 

clean-up at the same level of the previous clean-up. Any liability issues relating to 

clean up volunteers will be addressed prior to the event. 

 

GM King advised the Board that Trustee Burns has requested advertisement for the 

Board of Trustees upcoming election/call for nominations. The purpose of this is 

inform property owners of this year’s election and educate the public about RD 1000, 

its mission, etc.  

 

4.2 – Superintendent’s Report: A written informational summary was provided to the 

Board in the June board packet.  

 

Trustee Burns requested to have a monthly update for unauthorized encampment 

issues.  Superintendent Caldwell acknowledged this request.  

 

4.3 – District Counsel’s Report: District Counsel Jim Day provided a verbal report of his 

activities during June 2019. 

 

5. Consent Calendar 

 

All Consent Calendar items are acted upon by one Motion. No items were removed for 

separate consideration. 

 

Board Packet 
Page 18 of 157



 

Moved/Seconded: Trustee Burns / Trustee Christophel  

Ayes: Trustees Christophel, Barandas, Smith, Burns, Gilbert 

Action: A motion passed to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion. 

 

5.1  Approval of Minutes from June 7, 2019 Regular Board Meeting  

Action: Approved Minutes from June 7, 2019 Board Meeting. 

 

5.2  Treasurer’s Report for June 2019. 

Action: Approved Treasurer’s Report for June 2019 

 

5.3   Expenditure Report: Review and Accept Report for June 2019. 

  Action: Reviewed and Accepted Expenditure Report for June 2019. 

 

5.4   Budget to Actual Report: Review and Accept Report for June 2019. 

  Action: Reviewed and Accepted Budget to Actual Report for June 2019. 

 

5.5   Annual Banking Authorization (Sacramento County): Review and Consider Adoption        

of Resolution No. 2019-7-1 Authorizing Officers and Trustees as Signatories to the 

Operations and Maintenance Funds held by Sacramento County Treasurer. 

Action: Approved Resolution No. 2019-7-1 authorizing officers and trustees as 

signatories to the O/M Funds held by Sacramento County Treasurer. 

 

5.6   Authorization to Invest in Local Agency Investment Fund: Review and Consider 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-7-2 Authorizing Officers to Invest District Funds in 

the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). 

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 2019-7-2 authorizing officers to invest district funds 

in the Local Agency Investment Fund. 

 

5.7   Letter of Support for Assembly Bill No. 137: Review and Consider Approval of Letter 

of Support for AB 137 (Cooper) – Facilities of the State Plan of Flood Control. 

Action: Approved letter of support for AB 137 (Cooper). 

 

 

6. Scheduled Items 

 

6.1 – Public Hearing: Adoption of Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Operation and Maintenance 

Assessment: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-7-3 Authorizing 

Levying of Operations and Maintenance Assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

 

Trustee Smith opened the public hearing. There were no comments from the public. GM 

King stated annually the Board adopts a resolution authorizing levying of the operations 

Board Packet 
Page 19 of 157



 

and maintenance assessment on the Sacramento County tax roll for Fiscal Year 

2019/2020. The assessed rate remains the same; however, the anticipated collected 

amount is expected to be at least $2.3 million.  Trustee Burns expressed a desire to add 

to the minutes that the Assessment Rate has remained unchanged since 1997 (22 

years). 

 

Moved/Seconded: Trustee Christophel/Trustee Barandas 

Ayes: Trustees Christophel, Barandas, Smith, Burns, Gilbert 

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 2019-7-3 Authorizing Levying of Operations and 

Maintenance Assessment for Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

 

6.2 – Certification of Legal Process for Special Assessment: Review and Consider 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-7-4 Certifying to the County of Sutter the Validity 

of the Legal Process Used to Place Direct Charges (Special Assessment) on the 

Secured Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 

 

Trustee Smith asked if there were public comments. There were no public comments. 

The hearing was closed. GM King stated a resolution is required annually by the County 

of Sutter spelling out the legal process to place Direct Charges (Special Assessment) on 

the Secured Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

 

Moved/Seconded: Trustee Barandas/Trustee Smith 

Ayes: Trustees Christophel, Barandas, Smith, Burns, Gilbert 

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 2019-7-4 Certifying to the County of Sutter the 

Validity of the Legal Process Used to Place Direct Charges (Special Assessment) on 

the Secured Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

 

7. Board of Trustee’s Comments 

 

7.1 – Board Activity Updates: 

 

7.1.1.  RD 1000 Committee Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 

 

• Executive Committee (Smith & Barandas) July 3, 2019 

A summary of the July 3, 2019 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes was 

included for review in the July 12, 2019 board packet.  

 

 

Board Packet 
Page 20 of 157



 

7.1.2 RD 1000 Committees No Meetings Since Last Board Meeting 

• Finance Committee (Gilbert, Harris, & Smith) 

• Legal Committee (Avdis, Barandas, & Harris) 

• Operations Committee (Barandas, Christophel, & Smith) 

• Personnel Committee (Harris, Burns, Christophel) 

• Urbanization Committee (Burns, Gilbert, & Avdis) 

 

7.1.3 Trustee’s Comments/Reports  

Trustee Barandas made known that SAFCA Executive Committee did not meet in July 

due to the July 4 holiday.  

 

The Board briefly discussed the upcoming Board Election in November 2019. Three 

parcel seats will be available. Seats are currently held by Trustees Jeff Smith, Fred 

Harris and Tom Barandas. ASM Gutierrez made known Call for Nomination forms are 

now available for pick up. 

 

Trustee Burns shared concern about community impacts from the Corps projects and 

would like to see better outreach efforts. GM King may engage the new Corps Colonel 

for additional construction project updates and collaborative efforts to keep the 

community updated. 

 

8. Closed Session 

 

8.1 – There were no Closed Session items 

 

9. Reconvene to Open Session 

 

9.1.  No Closed Session Items 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

Board Packet 
Page 21 of 157



DATE:  August 9 , 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.2 

TITLE: Treasurer’s Report 

SUBJECT: Approve Treasurer’s Report for July 2019 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to inform the Board of the current total funds in the District’s 
checking and money market accounts, Sacramento County Treasurer Fund, State Treasurer Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), and the City of Sacramento Pooled Investment Fund. 

The Staff Report attachment provides the monthly beginning and ending balances of its 
Operations and Maintenance cash flow. The report considers the current month's receipts, fund 
to fund transfers, accounts payable, and payroll. 

The District began Fiscal Year 19/20 on July 1. Fiscal transactions were standard for the month. 
Received at the end of June was $94, 843.50 into the County Treasury. This information is being 
reported in July because the amounts have only recently become available.  

BACKGROUND: 

Income and Cash 

The District has funds in the California State Controller Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), the 
Sacramento County Treasurer and Bank of the West. 

The District’s primary source of income is property assessments. Assessments are collected 
through respective Sacramento and Sutter County tax bills. 

The District is required by law to have a minimum of 6 months operation and maintenance 
reserves. Additionally, the District needs six months of Operations and Maintenance (O/M) 
reserves to pay expenses from July through December when the 1st installments are collected on 
property assessments. The annual O/M budget is approximately $2 million per year. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board approve the information in the July 2019 Treasurer’s Report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

Board Packet 
Page 22 of 157



ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Treasurer’s Report

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/01/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 23 of 157



Reclamation District 1000

Treasurer's Report

July 2019

Treasurer's Report for July 2019

July 2019

Total Funds 9,718,242.97

Bank of the West - Checking 189,466.59

Bank of the West - Money Market 217,837.30

Sacramento County Treasurer 3,385,197.81

State Treasurer - Local Agency Investment Fund 3,865,959.63

City of Sacramento - Pool A 2,059,781.64

July 2019 - Operations and Maintenance Cash Flow

Beginning Balance 3,537,221.17

Income Expense

Current months receipts 44,093.77 44,093.77

Transfer from money market account 300,000.00 300,000.00

Accounts Payable* (217,101.91) (217,101.91)

Payroll (89,548.63) (89,548.63)

Ending Balance 3,574,664.40

*See Attached Check Register

Current months receipts are made up of the following:

Reimbursement of SMUD deposit from SAFCA 5,000.00

Collection of Q2 2019 security patrolling from Natomas Basin 4,500.00

Deposit from Beazer Homes 15,000.00

Collection from Greenbriar for fronted project costs 19,593.77

The district received $94,843.52 into the County Treasury during June 2019.  Because 

of the timing of receipt of the County Treasury statements, these amounts were not

previously reported. 

AGENDA ITEM 5.2
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 24 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3 

TITLE: Expenditure Report  

SUBJECT: Review and Accept Report for July 2019 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to advise the Board of monthly expenditures and provide an 
explanation of any expenses outside of the usual course of business.  Staff recommends the 
Board review and accept the Expenditure Report for July 2019. 

BACKGROUND: 

Expenses 

The Administrative Services Manager reviews and the General Manager approves expenditures. 
This activity is disclosed monthly as an attachment to this staff report. The attached Expenditure 
Report (Attachment 1) reveals normal District spending with the exception of a large annual 
payment ($69,998.00) toward the Districts CalPERS Annual Unfunded Liability. This is a one-time 
payment and budgeted item for the FY 19/20. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Expenditure Report for July 2019. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. July 2019 Expenditure Report

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/01/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 25 of 157



Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance 

Cash and Investments 152,023.36 

1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 152,023.36 
General 
Journal 07/02/2019 Settlement of 6/30/19 accrued payroll 26,803.29 125,220.07 
General 
Journal 07/02/2019 Settlement of 6/30/19 accrued payroll 11,593.14 113,626.93 
General 
Journal 07/02/2019 Settlement of 6/30/19 accrued payroll 95.85 113,531.08 
General 
Journal 07/02/2019 Settlement of 6/30/19 accrued payroll, ck # 10044 207.79 113,323.29 
General 
Journal 07/02/2019 Settlement of 6/30/19 accrued payroll, ck # 10045 207.79 113,115.50 

Check 07/02/2019 EFT Cal Pers 817.23 112,298.27 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/03/2019 40580 

Bare Bones 
Workwear 1,123.69 111,174.58 

Bill Pmt
-Check 07/03/2019 40581 Brookman Protection Services, Inc. 7,800.00 103,374.58 

Check 07/03/2019 40582 
Franchise Tax 
Board 314.68 103,059.90 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/03/2019 40583 H.T. Harvey & Associates 1,625.44 101,434.46 
Bill Pmt
-Check 07/03/2019 40584 Mead & Hunt 1,528.25 99,906.21 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/03/2019 40585 

N 
Communicatio
ns, Inc. 1,600.00 98,306.21 

Bill Pmt
-Check 07/03/2019 40586 

Napa Auto 
Parts 46.26 98,259.95 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/03/2019 40587 Smile Business Products 244.36 98,015.59 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/09/2019 EFT PG&E 10.45 98,005.14 

Check 07/09/2019 EFT Cal Pers 250.00 97,755.14 

Check 07/09/2019 EFT Cal Pers 4,814.93 92,940.21 

Check 07/09/2019 EFT Cal Pers 3,914.16 89,026.05 

Check 07/09/2019 EFT Cal Pers 2,189.63 86,836.42 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40588 ACWA JPIA 1,758.76 85,077.66 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40589 Airgas NCN 360.55 84,717.11 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40590 AT&T 271.94 84,445.17 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40591 Carson Landscape Industries 695.00 83,750.17 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40593 CRHS Sacramento Work Study, Inc. 14,000.00 69,750.17 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40594 Great America Financial Services 304.85 69,445.32 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40595 Grow West 811.46 68,633.86 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40596 

Interstate Oil 
Company 3,574.18 65,059.68 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40597 

Nordic 
Industries, Inc. 1,554.22 63,505.46 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40598 Steve Yaeger Consulting 3,390.00 60,115.46 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40599 

Tesco 
Controls, Inc. 22,040.00 38,075.46 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40600 Tractor Supply Credit Plan 58.80 38,016.66 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40601 US Bank Corp 8,632.42 29,384.24 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40602 Valley Hydraulics & Machine, Inc. 870.71 28,513.53 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40603 

Valley Tire 
Center, Inc. 20.00 28,493.53 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40605 Yolo County Public Works 362.88 28,130.65 

AGENDA ITEM 5.3
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 26 of 157



Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 40604 Valley Truck & Tractor Company 1,423.20 26,707.45 
Bill Pmt
-Check 07/10/2019 EFT 

City of 
Sacramento 49.26 26,658.19 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 EFT 

City of 
Sacramento 163.88 26,494.31 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/10/2019 EFT 

City of 
Sacramento 4.38 26,489.93 

Transfe
r 07/12/2019 Funds Transfer 100,000.00 126,489.93 
General 
Journal 07/12/2019 SAFCA 

Reimbursement from SAFCA for SMUD 
security deposit in April 2019 5,000.00 131,489.93 

General 
Journal 07/12/2019 

The Notomas 
Basin 
Conservancy Collection of Q2 2019 security patroling 4,500.00 135,989.93 

General 
Journal 07/12/2019 

Beazer 
Homes 
California Beazer Homes Deposit 15,000.00 150,989.93 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/15/2019 EFT Comcast 158.38 150,831.55 
General 
Journal 07/15/2019 7/15/19 payroll 34,454.27 116,377.28 
General 
Journal 07/15/2019 7/15/19 payroll 16,101.75 100,275.53 
General 
Journal 07/15/2019 7/15/19 payroll 84.75 100,190.78 

Check 07/16/2019 EFT Cal Pers 2020 unfunded accrued liability 69,998.00 30,192.78 

Check 07/16/2019 EFT Cal Pers 2020 unfunded accrued liability 1,332.00 28,860.78 

Check 07/16/2019 EFT Cal Pers 2020 unfunded accrued liability 89.00 28,771.78 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 40606 Angel Electric 1,045.90 27,725.88 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 40607 Day Carter & Murphy LLP 2,645.00 25,080.88 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 40608 Larsen Wurzel & Associates 112.00 24,968.88 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 40609 Occupational Health Centers of CA 325.50 24,643.38 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 40610 Terrapin Technology Group 3,687.43 20,955.95 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 EFT Consolidated Utilities Billing & Service 227.40 20,728.55 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/17/2019 EFT Streamline 200.00 20,528.55 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/18/2019 EFT Waste Management of Sacramento 473.56 20,054.99 

Check 07/18/2019 EFT Cal Pers 16,590.31 3,464.68 

Check 07/22/2019 EFT Cal Pers 300.00 3,164.68 
General 
Journal 07/22/2019 Greenbriar 

Collection from Greenbriar for April and 
May 2019 legal and engineering costs 19,593.77 22,758.45 

Transfe
r 07/23/2019 Funds Transfer 200,000.00 222,758.45 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/24/2019 40611 Chavez, Silva & Company 722.50 222,035.95 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/24/2019 40612 

Costco 
Wholesale 120.00 221,915.95 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/24/2019 40613 

County of 
Sacramento 236.67 221,679.28 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/24/2019 40614 H.T. Harvey & Associates 461.50 221,217.78 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/24/2019 40615 

Signature 
Graphics 1,512.00 219,705.78 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/24/2019 40616 SMUD 28,826.98 190,878.80 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/25/2019 EFT PG&E 196.82 190,681.98 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/25/2019 EFT 

The Home 
Depot 198.12 190,483.86 

Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/26/2019 40617 Pinnacle Pressure Washing 375.00 190,108.86 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/26/2019 EFT Alhambra & Sierra Springs 55.82 190,053.04 
Bill Pmt 
-Check 07/26/2019 EFT Verizon 586.45 189,466.59 

Board Packet 
Page 27 of 157



Total 1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 344,093.77 306,650.54 189,466.59 

Total Cash and Investments 344,093.77 306,650.54 189,466.59 
344,093.77 306,650.54 189,466.59 

Board Packet 
Page 28 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.4 

TITLE: Budget to Actual Report 

SUBJECT: Review and Accept Report for July 2019 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This Staff Report is intended to provide a monthly budgetary snapshot of how well the District is 
meeting its set budget goals for the fiscal year. The monthly Budget to Actual Report contains a 
three-column presentation of actual expenditures, budgeted expenditures, and percentage of 
the budget. Each line item compares budgeted amounts against actual to date expenses. 
Significant budgeted line item variances (if any) will be explained in the Executive Summary of 
this report.  

This month there are two reports to review. Attachment 1  reflects the District’s year to date 
budget for the month ending June 30, 2019; which is also the end of the 2018-19 Fiscal Year. 
Unfavorable budget line item variances as of June 30 are still consistent with previously 
established reasons (staffing, permits, assessments, association memberships, power, field 
consultants, office upgrades, etc.); the District ended Fiscal Year 18/19 under the total approved 
FY 18/19 budget. 

Attachment 2 provides a year to date report for the month ending July 31, 2019. Our largest 
expenditure during  the month of July is for the District’s CalPERS Annual Unfunded Liability. This 
is a budgeted item and one-time payment during Fiscal Year 19/20. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board of Trustees adopts a budget annually in June. District staff prepares the Budget, which 
shows current year budget versus expenditures and a proposed budget for the next fiscal year.  

Three committees review the draft budget before being presented to the Board for adoption in 
June. The Personnel Committee reviews the wage and benefits portion of the Budget. The 
Operations Committee reviews the Capital expenditures Budget. After the two committees 
review and make recommendations to the budget, the final draft is prepared for the Finance 
Committee to consider. After review by the Finance Committee, the final Budget is presented to 
the Board for adoption at a regular Board meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and accept the Budget to Actual Report for June & July 2019. 

Board Packet 
Page 29 of 157



FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Budget to Actual Report June 2019 FINAL for Fiscal Year 2018/2019

2. Budget to Actual Report July 2019

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/01/2019 
Joleen Gutierrez, Administrative Services Manager 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 30 of 157



Reclamation District No. 1000

Budget to Actual Comparison

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 (Twelve Months Ending of Fiscal 2019)

Year to Date

July 1, 2018 Percent of

to June 30, 2019 Budget Budget

Operation & Maintenance Income

Property Assessments 2,253,320 2,250,000 100.15%

Rents 19,871 20,000 99.36%

Interest Income 156,090 50,000 312.18%

SAFCA - O/M Assessment 1,400,000 1,400,000 100.00%

Misc Income 12,757 - Not Budgeted

FEMA/OES Disaster Reimbursement 1,041,811 - Not Budgeted

Gain on Capital Asset Disposal 6,400 - Not Budgeted

Total 4,890,249 3,720,000 131.46%

Restricted Fund

Metro Airpark Groundwater Pumping 17,488 22,000 79.49%

Total Combined Income 4,907,737 3,742,000 131.15%

Operations and Maintenance - Expense

Administration

Government Fees/Permits 12,537 12,000 104.48%

Legal 87,173 100,000 87.17%

Liability/Auto Insurance 107,637 110,000 97.85%

Office Supplies 4,849 5,500 88.16%

Computer Costs 18,881 17,000 111.06%

Accounting/Audit 40,759 45,000 90.58%

Admin. Services 11,482 17,000 67.54%

Utilities (Phone/Water/Sewer) 24,896 22,000 113.16%

Mit. Land Expenses 2,592 3,000 86.40%

Administrative Consultants 41,767 52,000 80.32%

Assessment/Property Taxes (SAFCA - CAD) 6,864 6,350 108.09%

Admin - Misc./Other Expenses 9,048 5,000 180.96%

Memberships 31,014 30,000 103.38%

Office Maintenance & Repair 17,037 24,000 70.99%

Payroll Service 2,415 3,000 80.50%

Public Relations 18,676 40,000 46.69%

Small Office & Computer Equipment 4,088 5,000 81.76%

Homeless Expenses 523 - Not Budgeted

Sub Total 442,238 496,850 89.01%

Personnel/Labor

Wages 1,106,391 1,000,000 110.64%

Group Insurance (employee health insurance) 89,953 130,000 69.19%

Worker's Compensation Insurance 32,231 40,000 80.58%

OPEB - CERBT ADC - 28,000 0.00%

Annuitant Health Care 65,512 - Not Budgeted

Dental/Vision/Life 20,591 26,000 79.20%

Payroll Taxes 84,982 77,500 109.65%

Pension 193,688 165,000 117.39%

Continuing Education 8,189 15,000 54.59%

Trustee Fees 36,000 39,000 92.31%

Sub Total 1,637,537 1,520,500 107.70%

AGENDA ITEM 5.4
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 31 of 157



Operations

Power 598,923 500,000 119.78%

Supplies/Materials 22,520 22,000 102.36%

Herbicide 79,287 115,000 68.95%

Fuel 47,123 65,000 72.50%

Field Services 45,490 142,000 32.04%

Field Operations Consultants 21,211 20,000 106.06%

Equipment Rental 100 10,000 1.00%

Refuse Collection 11,387 25,000 45.55%

Equipment Repair/Service 2,917 22,000 13.26%

Equipment Parts/Supplies 42,312 60,000 70.52%

Facility Repairs 68,141 273,000 24.96%

Shop Equipment (not vehicles) 11,594 9,000 128.82%

Field Equipment 377 8,000 4.71%

Misc/Other 2 126 - Not Budgeted

FEMA Fees 1,800 - Not Budgeted

Sub Total 953,308 1,271,000 75.00%

Equipment

Equipment 146,908 150,000 97.94%

Sub Total 146,908 150,000 97.94%

Consulting/Contracts/Memberships

Engineering/Technical Consultants 175,347 250,000 70.14%

Security Patrol 55,650 80,000 69.56%

Sub Total 230,997 330,000 70.00%

Total O & M Expenses 3,410,988 3,768,350 90.52%

Capital Expenses

Capital Office Upgrades 26,187 15,000 174.58%

Capital RE Acquisition 5,500 120,000 4.58%

Capital Office Facility Repair 20,912 30,000 69.71%

Document Management 8,875 8,800 100.85%

Capital Facilities 371,952 715,000 52.02%

Sub Total 433,426 888,800 48.77%

Total All Expenditures 3,844,414 4,657,150 82.55%

Board Packet 
Page 32 of 157



Reclamation District No. 1000

Budget to Actual Comparison

July 1, 2019 to July 31, 2019 (One Month Ending of Fiscal 2020)

Year to Date

July 1, 2019 Percent of

to July 31, 2019 Budget Budget

Operation & Maintenance Income

Property Assessments - 2,250,000 0.00%

Rents - 20,000 0.00%

Interest Income - 65,000 0.00%

SAFCA - O/M Assessment - 1,400,000 0.00%

Misc Income - - Not Budgeted

FMAP Grant - 574,000 0.00%

Annuitant Trust Reimbursement - 70,000 0.00%

Security Patrol Reimbursement - 31,000 0.00%

Total - 4,410,000 0.00%

Restricted Fund

Metro Airpark Groundwater Pumping - 22,000 0.00%

Total Combined Income - 4,432,000 0.00%

Administration, Operations and Maintenance - Expenses

Administration

Government Fees/Permits - 12,500 0.00%

Legal - 97,000 0.00%

Liability/Auto Insurance 27,476 150,000 18.32%

Office Supplies - 5,500 0.00%

Computer Costs 200 24,000 0.83%

Accounting/Audit 1,350 46,050 2.93%

Admin. Services 3,026 17,000 17.80%

Utilities (Phone/Water/Sewer) 1,164 23,700 4.91%

Mit. Land Expenses - 3,000 0.00%

Administrative Consultants - 130,000 0.00%

Assessment/Property Taxes (SAFCA - CAD) - 8,000 0.00%

Admin - Misc./Other Expenses - 8,250 0.00%

Memberships 9,265 40,500 22.88%

Office Maintenance & Repair 1,070 27,000 3.96%

Payroll Service 85 3,500 2.43%

Public Relations 1,300 45,000 2.89%

Small Office & Computer Equipment - 12,000 0.00%

Election 1,600 55,000 2.91%

Conference/Travel/Professional Development - 20,500 0.00%

Sub Total 46,536 728,500 6.39%

Personnel/Labor

Wages 51,056 1,058,262 4.82%

Group Insurance 18,705 97,440 19.20%

Worker's Compensation Insurance 3,452 39,544 8.73%

OPEB - ARC - 30,000 0.00%

Dental/Vision/Life 3,305 22,328 14.80%

Payroll Taxes 3,811 71,000 5.37%

Pension 71,419 178,264 40.06%

Continuing Education - 5,000 0.00%

Trustee Fees - 40,000 0.00%

Annuitant Health Care 13,225 70,000 18.89%

Sub Total 164,973 1,611,838 10.24%

AGENDA ITEM 5.4
ATTACHMENT NO. 2

Board Packet 
Page 33 of 157



Operations

Power 197 500,000 0.04%

Supplies/Materials 1,568 22,000 7.13%

Herbicide - 105,000 0.00%

Fuel 3,574 55,000 6.50%

Field Services 1,317 100,000 1.32%

Field Operations Consultants - 20,000 0.00%

Equipment Rental - 5,000 0.00%

Refuse Collection 474 25,000 1.90%

Equipment Repair/Service - 16,000 0.00%

Equipment Parts/Supplies - 60,000 0.00%

Facility Repairs 1,046 366,000 0.29%

Shop Equipment (not vehicles) - 3,000 0.00%

Field Equipment - 10,100 0.00%

Misc/Other 2 - 500 0.00%

Utilities - Field 89 8,000 1.11%

Government Fees/Permits - Field - 12,000 0.00%

FEMA Permits - 4,000 0.00%

Sub Total 8,265 1,311,600 0.63%

Equipment

Equipment - 132,000 0.00%

Sub Total - 132,000 0.00%

Consulting/Contracts/Memberships

Engineering/Technical Consultants - 180,000 0.00%

Security Patrol - 65,000 0.00%

Temporary Admin 14,000 15,000 93.33%

Sub Total 14,000 260,000 5.38%

FMAP Expenditures

LOI/SWIF - 20,000 0.00%

Equipment - 305,100 0.00%

Operations & Maintenance - 236,500 0.00%

Administrative - 12,400 0.00%

Sub Total - 574,000 0.00%

Total A, O & M Expenses 233,774 4,617,938 5.06%

Capital Expenses

Capital Office Upgrades - 30,000 0.00%

Capital RE Acquisition - 50,000 0.00%

Capital Office Facility Repair - 30,000 0.00%

Document Management - - Not Budgeted

Capital - District Server 2,033 10,000 20.33%

Capital Facilities - 180,000 0.00%

Sub Total 2,033 300,000 0.68%

Total All Expenditures 235,807 4,917,938 4.79%

Board Packet 
Page 34 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.5 

TITLE: Authorization to Grant Easement 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-1 Authorizing General 
Manager to Grant Easement Deed to Sacramento Municipal Utility District. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) has been working with the Sacramento Municipal 
Utility District (SMUD) since 2017 on a SMUD project along Elkhorn Blvd where SMUD needs an 
easement for a 69kV overhead power line.  This section of the line is a part of a larger project 
which brings power from SMUD’s bulk substation at National and Striker up and along Elkhorn 
Blvd and across to Metro Air Park.  This project is needed to serve the incoming demand of future 
developments and the new Amazon building  

For the project to move forward, Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of 
Resolution No. 2019-8-1 authorizing the General Manager to Grant Easement Deed as provided 
in Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-1 
authorizing the General Manager to Grant Easement Deed, as provided in Attachment 1 of this 
staff report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2019-8-1: Authorizing the General Manager to Grant Easement Deed to
Sacramento Municipal Utility District.

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 35 of 157



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO GRANT EASEMENT DEED TO  

SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District 
Office on the 9th day of August 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of Reclamation District No. 1000 (“District”) 
is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved 
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (“SMUD”), a municipal utility 
district formed pursuant to the laws of the State of California; and, 

WHEREAS, District has the need to convey easement deed to SMUD, to allow SMUD to 
relocate SMUD facilities; and,   

WHEREAS, District has provided to SMUD an easement deed as provided in Attachment 
No. 1 to this resolution; and,   

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to grant the 
easement on behalf of the District.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 
No. 1000 hereby grants easement deed to SMUD as provided in Attachment No. 1 of this 
resolution and authorizes the General Manager to grant said easement.  

AGENDA ITEM 5.5
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 36 of 157



ON A MOTION BY Trustee ____________, seconded by Trustee ____________, the 
foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 
No. 1000, this 9th day of August 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: Trustees: 

NOES: Trustees: 

ABSTAIN: Trustees: 

RECUSE: Trustees: 

ABSENT: Trustees: 

______________________________________ 

Jeff Smith 

President, Board of Trustees 

Reclamation District No. 1000 

Board Packet 
Page 37 of 157



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution 2019-8-1 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
at the regular meeting held on the 9th of August 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

________________________________ 

Joleen Gutierrez, District Secretary 

Board Packet 
Page 38 of 157



SMUD0072 
RECORD AT REQUEST OF AND RETURN TO: 
Sacramento Municipal Utility District 
Attention:  Real Estate Services – K222 
P.O. Box 15830 
Sacramento, CA  95852-1830 

No Fee Document – Per Govt. Code Sec. 6103 
No County Transfer Tax Per R & T Code 11922 

SMUD BY:  _______________________ 
(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE) 

A.P.N. Ptn. 201-0100-010 R/W 2017/009-S 
SO 30145757 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the State of California, Grantor, hereby grants to 
SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, a municipal utility district, Grantee, its successors and 
assigns, an easement for the placement and maintenance of electrical and communication facilities, inclusive of 
the right to suspend, construct, reconstruct, place, inspect, remove, replace, repair, upgrade, use, and forever 
maintain facilities consisting of aerial wires and cables with associated crossarms, braces, transformers, capacitors, 
switches, and all necessary fixtures and appurtenances, and no further facilities without the prior written approval 
of Grantor, within the following described route, but at a location approved by Grantor as shown on the plat 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.   

The easement being granted herein is contained and located on that certain real property situated in the County of 
Sacramento, State of California, described as: 

Lot 175 as shown on that certain “Map of Natomas Central Subdivision” recorded in the office of 
Recorder of Sacramento County on September 18, 1920 in Book 16 of Maps at Page 3; and 

In that certain Quitclaim Deed from City of Sacramento, a municipal corporation, to Reclamation District 
No. 1000, a public entity of the State of California, dated and recorded in the office of the Recorder of 
Sacramento County on May 22, 2002 in Book 20020522 of Official Records at Page 1160. 

The grant of this easement includes the right to trim and/or remove any trees or foliage by Grantee along said 
easement whenever considered necessary for the complete enjoyment thereof and the right of ingress to and egress 
from said easement for the purpose of exercising and performing all of the rights and privileges granted herein.  It 
is understood and agreed that use of the property on which this easement is granted by Grantor for public safety 
flood control and drainage purposes takes precedence over use of such property by Grantee, and Grantee shall 
relocate its facilities, at Grantee’s expense, promptly at the request of Grantor should such become necessary in 
the reasonable opinion of Grantor for flood control or drainage use of the property by Grantor.   

Board Packet 
Page 39 of 157



The route of said easement is described in Exhibits “A” and “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Dated: RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
a public entity of the State of California 

By: 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 40 of 157



EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description 

Board Packet 
Page 41 of 157



EXHIBIT “B” 

Board Packet 
Page 42 of 157



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 

County of   ) 

On ______________________ before me, 
(insert name and title of the officer) 

personally appeared  , 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   

Board Packet 
Page 43 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.6 

TITLE: Authorization to Accept Easement 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-2 Authorizing General 
Manager to Accept Facility Easement Deed from Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000 (RD 1000; District) has been working with the Greenbriar Development 
to accommodate the planned development while allowing the District to continue to provide 
ongoing maintenance and operation and protection of the District’s facilities.       

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-2 
authorizing the General Manager to accept the Grant of Facility Easement Deed as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-2 
authorizing the General Manager to accept the Grant of Facility Easement Deed as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2019-8-2: Authorizing the General Manager to Accept Grant of Facility
Easement Deed from Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC.

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 44 of 157



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT GRANT OF FACILITY EASEMENT DEED 

FROM GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District 
Office on the 9th day of August 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of Reclamation District No. 1000 (“District”) 
is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved 
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC (“Owner”) is a limited liability company 
established pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware; and, 

WHEREAS, Owner has the need to convey easement deeds to District, to allow District 
to maintain for the District’s purpose and use for existing and future flood control projects; 
and,   

WHEREAS, Owner has provided to District a facility easement deed as provided in 
Attachment No. 1 to this resolution; and,   

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 27281, the District Board has 
authority to accept such assignment of easements from Owner upon the execution of the 
certificate of acceptance set forth in Attachment No. 1 to this resolution; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to execute the 
certificate of acceptance on behalf of the District.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 
No. 1000 hereby accepts the grant of easement deed from Owner as provided in Attachment 
No. 1 of this resolution and authorizes the General Manager to execute the certification of 
acceptance.  

AGENDA ITEM 5.6
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 45 of 157



ON A MOTION BY Trustee _________, seconded by Trustee ________ the foregoing 
resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, 
this 9th day of August 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 0 Trustees: 

NOES: 0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN: 0 Trustees: 

RECUSE: 0 Trustees: 

ABSENT: 0 Trustees: 

______________________________________ 

Jeff Smith 

President, Board of Trustees 

Reclamation District No. 1000 

Board Packet 
Page 46 of 157



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution 2019-8-2 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
at the regular meeting held on the 9th of August 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

________________________________ 

Joleen Gutierrez, District Secretary 

Board Packet 
Page 47 of 157



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by this deed dated___________ 
from the first party to the RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 (“RD 1000”), is hereby 
accepted pursuant to RD 1000 Board of Trustees Resolution No. 2019-8-2, and the Grantee 
consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

By________________________________        Dated: _________________ , 20___ 

Kevin L. King 
General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 48 of 157



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

NAME Reclamation District No. 1000 
MAILING 
ADDRESS 1633 Garden Highway 

CITY, 
STATE 
ZIP CODE 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE) 

Documentary Transfer Tax $ - 0 - 
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed. 
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed less liens 
       and encumbrances remaining thereon at time of sale. 
___ No property transfer tax due.  

By:  

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

(FACILITY EASEMENT) 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability 
Company (“Grantor”), hereby grants to RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the 
State of California created under Cal. Stats. 1911, Chapter 412, its successors and assigns (“Grantee”), 
a non-exclusive and perpetual easement for the installation, construction, operation, maintenance and 
replacement of a drainage channel, rocked access road(s) and incidental purposes upon and across that 
certain real property located in the County of Sacramento as described on Exhibit “A” (the “Facility 
Easement”) and shown on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
Grantor covenants and agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, as a covenant running with the land, 
that Grantor will not commence or allow other uses in the Facility Easement which may interfere with 
Grantee’s use, operation, maintenance or replacement of its drainage channel, and agrees to provide to 
Grantee an opportunity to reasonably review and approve of any such other uses and to enter into a 
joint use agreement with any such other users within the Facility Easement prior to the granting of any 
rights therefor or the commencement of any such other uses.   

(Signatures appear on the following page.) 

Board Packet 
Page 49 of 157



Dated: , 2019 

THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By:______________________ 
Name: ___________________ 
Its: ______________________ 

Board Packet 
Page 50 of 157



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 

County of   ) 

On ______________________ before me, 

(insert name and title of the officer) 

personally appeared 

, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   

Board Packet 
Page 51 of 157



SUBORDINATION 

The undersigned, GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA, Beneficiary under that certain 
Building Loan Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (the “Goldman Deed of 
Trust”) executed by The Greenbriar Project Owner, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the 
“Trustor”), dated July 12, 2019, recorded July 12, 2019, as Instrument No. 2019-07121151, 
Official Records, Sacramento County, California, and Assignee under that certain Building Loan 
Assignment of Leases and Rents (the “Goldman Assignment”) executed by Trustor, dated July 12, 
2019, recorded July 12, 2019, as Instrument No. 2019-07121152, Official Records, Sacramento 
County, California does hereby consent to each and all of the provisions contained in the within 
instrument, GRANT OF EASEMENT (FACILITY EASEMENT), and all amendments and 
annexations thereto and does hereby agree that the lien and charge of said Goldman Deed of Trust 
and Goldman Assignment shall be, and is hereby made, subordinate to, junior to and subject to 
said within instrument and all amendments and annexations thereto and the entire effect thereof. 

Date: , 2019 BENEFICIARY: GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 

By: _________________________ 

Name:_______________________ 

Its:__________________________ 

Board Packet 
Page 52 of 157



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 

County of   ) 

On ______________________ before me, 

(insert name and title of the officer) 

personally appeared 

, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   

Board Packet 
Page 53 of 157



EXHIBIT A 

GREENBRIAR 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR 

FACILITY EASEMENT 

All that real property located in the City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, State of 
California described as follows: 

Being a portion of Lots 93, 94, 95, 96, 98, 124, 127, 128 and 129 of that certain map entitled 
“Map of Natomas Central Subdivision”, filed in Book 16 of Maps, at Page 3, Official Records of 
Sacramento County and situate in Section 33, Township 10 North, Range 4 East, Mount 
Diablo Meridian, more particularly described as follows: 

FACILITY EASEMENT AREA 1 

BEGINNING at the intersection of the north line of said Section 33 with a line being parallel with 
and 90.00 feet (as measured at right angles) easterly of the west line of the northwest quarter of 
said Section 33; thence from said POINT OF BEGINNING, along said parallel line, 
South 00°32'38" East, a distance of 2,692.73 feet; 

thence parallel with and 90.00 feet (as measured at right angles) easterly of the west line of the 
southwest quarter of said Section 33, South 00°24'23" East, a distance of 1,493.86 feet; 

thence South 08°17'14" East, a distance of 310.02 feet; 

thence parallel with and 100.00 feet (as measured at right angles) northerly of the northerly lines 
of that certain parcel of land conveyed to the State of California in a Grant Deed recorded 
August 6, 1965 in Book 5301 of Official Records, at Page 601 the following 3 arcs, courses and 
distances: 

1. South 55°17'47" East, a distance of 94.68 feet;
2. South 55°50'55" East, a distance of 580.63 feet;
3. along a tangent curve concave northerly, having a radius of 350.00 feet, easterly 196.65
feet along said curve through a central angle of 32°11'32";

thence South 86°37’16” East, a distance of 50.00 feet; 

thence South 03°22'44" West, a distance of 35.00 feet; 

thence parallel with and 65.00 feet (as measured at right angles) northerly of the northerly line 
of said Grant Deed, South 86°37'16" East, a distance of 55.60 feet; 

thence along a tangent curve concave northwesterly, having a radius of 28.00 feet, 
northeasterly 43.98 feet along said curve through a central angle of 90°00'00"; 

thence North 03°22'44" East, a distance of 22.28 feet; 

thence South 86°37'16" East, a distance of 17.00 feet; 

Board Packet 
Page 54 of 157



thence South 03°22'44" West, a distance of 22.28 feet; 

thence along a tangent curve concave northeasterly, having a radius of 28.00 feet, 
southeasterly 43.98 feet along said curve through a central angle of 90°00'00"; 

thence parallel with and 65.00 feet (as measured at right angles) northerly of the northerly lines 
of said Grant Deed the following four (4) arcs, courses and distances: 

1. South 86°37'16" East, a distance of 282.31 feet;
2. North 89°45'12" East, a distance of 775.90 feet;
3. along a tangent curve concave southerly, having a radius of 5,065.00 feet, easterly
801.55 feet along said curve through a central angle of 09°04'02";
4. South 81°10'46" East, a distance of 293.85 feet to an intersection with the northerly
prolongation of the easterly line of that certain Right-Of-Way conveyed to Reclamation
District No. 1000 in a Reclamation Right Of Way Deed recorded August 6, 1965 in Book
5301 of Official Records, at Page 467;

thence along said prolongation South 67°20'16" East, a distance of 124.52 feet to the northerly 
line of said Right-Of-Way; 

thence along the northerly line of said Right-Of-Way the following eleven (11) arcs, courses and 
distances: 

1. from a radial line which bears South 03°17'32" West, along a non-tangent curve concave
northerly, having a radius of 1,120.00 feet, westerly 108.06 feet along said curve through
a central angle of 05°31'42";
2. North 81°10'46" West, a distance of 306.86 feet;
3. along a tangent curve concave southerly, having a radius of 5,030.00 feet, westerly
796.01 feet along said curve through a central angle of 09°04'02";
4. South 89°45'12" West, a distance of 777.01 feet;
5. North 86°37'16" West, a distance of 440.60 feet;
6. North 43°30'54" West, a distance of 29.25 feet;
7. from a radial line which bears South 02°07'36" West, along a non-tangent curve concave
northerly, having a radius of 400.00 feet, westerly 223.57 feet along said curve through a
central angle of 32°01'28";
8. North 55°50'55" West, a distance of 580.09 feet;
9. North 54°32'02" West, a distance of 120.81 feet;
10. North 02°19'21" West, a distance of 332.22 feet;
11. South 89°45'12" West, a distance of 53.04 feet to the easterly line of that certain
easement conveyed to Reclamation District No. 1000 on June 25, 1926 in Book 76 of
Official Records, at Page 388;

thence along said easterly line, North 00°24'23" West, a distance of 1,493.83 feet; 

thence continuing along said easterly line, North 00°32'38" West, a distance of 2,693.48 feet to 
the northerly line of said Section 33; 

thence along said northerly line, South 89°51'49" East, a distance of 70.00 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING. 

Board Packet 
Page 55 of 157



Containing 9.992 acres, more or less. 

FACILITY EASEMENT AREA 2 

TOGETHER WITH that portion of Lot 98 of said “Map of Natomas Central Subdivision”, 
described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the intersection of that certain course delineated as “N 89°28’29” E 85.20 feet” 
in a Directors Deed recorded in Book 940616 of Official Records, at Page 402, with the westerly 
line of that easement recorded in February 1, 1988 in Book 880201 of Official Records, at Page 
1129, both of said County records; thence from said POINT OF BEGINNING along said 
westerly line, South 00°36'29" East, a distance of 167.44 feet; thence continuing along said 
westerly line, South 04°22'17" West, a distance of 16.27 feet; 

thence North 17°16 '05" West, a distance of 161.80 feet; 

thence North 04°20'58" East, a distance of 10.42 feet; 

thence North 85°39'02" West, a distance of 10.25 feet to the southerly prolongation of the 
westerly line of that certain easement conveyed to Reclamation District No. 1000 in a Director’s 
Deed recorded in Book 760924 of Official Records, at Page 1067, records of said County; 

thence along said prolongation, North 04°46'50" East, a distance of 17.54 feet to the southwest 
corner of said easement; 

thence along the south line of said easement and said “N 89°28’29” E 85.20 feet” course, 
respectively, North 89°29'21" East, a distance of 55.47 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Containing 0.122 acres, more or less. 

FACILITY EASEMENT AREA 3 

TOGETHER WITH that portion of Lots 98 and 124 of said “Map of Natomas Central 
Subdivision”, described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the intersection of the westerly line of said easement per Book 760924 of 
Official Records, at Page 1067 with a line parallel with and 30.00 feet westerly (as measured at 
right angles) of that certain course delineated as “N 00°33’00” W 351.20 feet” in a Director’s 
Deed (Quitclaim) recorded in Book 940615 of Official Records, at Page 401; thence from said 
POINT OF BEGINNING, along said parallel line, North 00°32'08" West, a distance of 352.48 
feet; 

thence North 04°21'50" East, a distance of 340.84 feet; 

thence parallel with and 30.00 feet westerly (as measured at right angles) of the westerly line of 
that certain Grant Deed recorded in Book 680927 of Official Records, at Page 495, said County 
records, North 00°30'39" West, a distance of 560.44 to the south line of that certain easement 
conveyed to the Sacramento Area Sewer District in Book 20090727 of Official Records, at Page 
846, said County records; 

thence along said south line, North 89°07'14" East, a distance of 0.25 feet to the westerly line of 

Board Packet 
Page 56 of 157



that certain easement conveyed to Reclamation District No. 1000 in Book 960123 of Official 
Records, at Page 1366, said County records; 

thence along said westerly line, South 00°33'38" East, a distance of 901.32 feet; 
1116.010 

thence continuing along said westerly line, South 04°20'48" West, a distance of 352.48 feet to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 0.248 acres, more or less. 

See Exhibit 'B', Plat to accompany description, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

END OF DESCRIPTION 

PREPARED BY WOOD RODGERS, INC. 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

Board Packet 
Page 57 of 157



EXHIBIT B 

Board Packet 
Page 58 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 59 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 60 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 61 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 62 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 63 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 64 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 65 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.7 

TITLE: Authorization to Accept Easement 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-3 Authorizing General 
Manager to Accept Access Easement Deed from Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000 (RD 1000; District) has been working with the Greenbriar Development 
to accommodate the planned development while allowing the District to continue to provide 
access for ongoing maintenance and operation of the District’s facilities.       

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-3 
authorizing the General Manager to accept the Grant of Access Easement Deed as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-3 
authorizing the General Manager to accept the Grant of Access Easement Deed as provided in 
Attachment 1 of this staff report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2019-8-3: Authorizing the General Manager to Accept Grant of Access
Easement Deed from Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC.

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 66 of 157



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT GRANT OF FACILITY EASEMENT DEED 

FROM GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District 
Office on the 9th day of August 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of Reclamation District No. 1000 (“District”) 
is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved 
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the Greenbriar Project Owner, LLC (“Owner”) is a limited liability company 
established pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware; and, 

WHEREAS, Owner has the need to convey easement deeds to District, to allow District 
access for the District’s purpose and use for existing and future flood control projects; and,   

WHEREAS, Owner has provided to District an access easement deed as provided in 
Attachment No. 1 to this resolution; and,   

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 27281, the District Board has 
authority to accept such assignment of easements from Owner upon the execution of the 
certificate of acceptance set forth in Attachment No. 1 to this resolution; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to execute the 
certificate of acceptance on behalf of the District.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 
No. 1000 hereby accepts the grant of easement deed from Owner as provided in Attachment 
No. 1 of this resolution and authorizes the General Manager to execute the certification of 
acceptance.  

AGENDA ITEM 5.7
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 67 of 157



ON A MOTION BY Trustee _________, seconded by Trustee ________ the foregoing 
resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, 
this 9th day of August 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 0 Trustees: 

NOES: 0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN: 0 Trustees: 

RECUSE: 0 Trustees: 

ABSENT: 0 Trustees: 

______________________________________ 

Jeff Smith 

President, Board of Trustees 

Reclamation District No. 1000 

Board Packet 
Page 68 of 157



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution 2019-8-3 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
at the regular meeting held on the 9th of August 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

________________________________ 

Joleen Gutierrez, District Secretary 

Board Packet 
Page 69 of 157



CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by this deed dated___________ 
from the first party to the RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 (“RD 1000”), is hereby 
accepted pursuant to RD 1000 Board of Trustees Resolution No. 2019-8-3, and the Grantee 
consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

By________________________________        Dated: _________________ , 20___ 

Kevin L. King 
General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 70 of 157



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

NAME Reclamation District No. 1000 
MAILING 
ADDRESS 1633 Garden Highway 

CITY, 
STATE 
ZIP CODE 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE) 

Documentary Transfer Tax $ - 0 - 
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed. 
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed less liens 
       and encumbrances remaining thereon at time of sale. 
___ No property transfer tax due.  

By:  

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

(ACCESS EASEMENT) 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability 
Company (“Grantor”), hereby grants to RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the 
State of California created under Cal. Stats. 1911, Chapter 412, its successors and assigns (“Grantee”), 
a non-exclusive and perpetual easement for ingress and egress, together with the right to improve and 
repair same with AB and asphalt, upon and across that certain real property located in the County of 
Sacramento as described on Exhibit “A” (the “Access Easement”) and shown on Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Grantor covenants and agrees for itself, its successors 
and assigns, as a covenant running with the land, that Grantor will not commence or allow other uses 
in the Access Easement which may interfere with Grantee’s use, operation, maintenance or 
replacement of its drainage channel, and agrees to provide to Grantee an opportunity to reasonably 
review and approve of any such other uses and to enter into a joint use agreement with any such other 
users within the Access Easement prior to the granting of any rights therefore or the commencement of 
any such other uses.   

(Signatures appear on the following page.) 

Board Packet 
Page 71 of 157



Dated: , 2019 

THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By:______________________ 
Name: ___________________ 
Its: ______________________ 

Board Packet 
Page 72 of 157



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 

County of   ) 

On ______________________ before me, 

(insert name and title of the officer) 

personally appeared 

, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   

Board Packet 
Page 73 of 157



SUBORDINATION 

The undersigned, GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA, Beneficiary under that certain 
Building Loan Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing (the “Goldman Deed of 
Trust”) executed by The Greenbriar Project Owner, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the 
“Trustor”), dated July 12, 2019, recorded July 12, 2019, as Instrument No. 2019-07121151, 
Official Records, Sacramento County, California, and Assignee under that certain Building Loan 
Assignment of Leases and Rents (the “Goldman Assignment”) executed by Trustor, dated July 12, 
2019, recorded July 12, 2019, as Instrument No. 2019-07121152, Official Records, Sacramento 
County, California does hereby consent to each and all of the provisions contained in the within 
instrument, GRANT OF EASEMENT (ACCESS EASEMENT), and all amendments and 
annexations thereto and does hereby agree that the lien and charge of said Goldman Deed of Trust 
Land Goldman Assignment shall be, and is hereby made, subordinate to, junior to and subject to 
said within instrument and all amendments and annexations thereto and the entire effect thereof. 

Date: , 2019 BENEFICIARY: GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 

By: _________________________ 

Name:_______________________ 
Its:__________________________ 

Board Packet 
Page 74 of 157



ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

State of California 

County of   ) 

On ______________________ before me, 

(insert name and title of the officer) 

personally appeared 

, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature (Seal) 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   

Board Packet 
Page 75 of 157



EXHIBIT A 

GREENBRIAR 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR 

ACCESS EASEMENT 

All that real property located in the City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, State of 
California described as follows: 

Being a portion of Lots 124 and 125 as shown on that certain map titled “Map of Natomas 
Central Subdivision”, filed in Book 16 of Maps, at Page 3, Official Records of Sacramento 
County and situate in Section 33, Township 10 North, Range 4 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, 
more particularly described as follows: 

ACCESS EASEMENT 

COMMENCING at a 3/4" iron pipe set in concrete marking the northwest corner of said 
Section33 and the northwest corner of Lot 129 of said map of Natomas Central Subdivision, and 
being shown on that certain Record of Survey filed January 2, 1974 in Book 30 of Surveys, at 
Page 38; thence from said POINT OF COMMENCEMENT, along the west line of the 
northwestquarter of said section 33 as shown on said Record of Survey, South 00°32’38” East, a 
distance of 2693.69 feet to a 3/4" iron pipe set in concrete and being shown on said Record of 
Survey; thence North 88°53’38” West, a distance of 4919.06 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING;thence from said TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, North 22°31'37" West, a 
distance of 75.82 feet to the southerly prolongation of the westerly line of that certain sewer 
easement conveyed to the Sacramento Area Sewer District in Book 20090827 of Official 
Records, at Page 845; thence along said prolongation and the westerly and southerly lines of said 
sewer easement the following ten (10) arcs, courses and distances: 

1. North 00°52'46" West, a distance of 740.78 feet;
2. North 04°33'50" West, a distance of 1,230.49 feet;
3. along a tangent curve concave to the west, having a radius of 343.24 feet,
northerly 127.59 feet along said curve through a central angle of 21°17'50";
4. North 29°35'54" West, a distance of 19.34 feet;
5. from a radial line which bears North 57°06'32" East, along a non-tangent curve
concave to the southwest, having a radius of 442.13 feet, northwesterly 340.49 feet along
said curve through a central angle of 44°07'28";
6. North 77°00'55" West, a distance of 222.01 feet;
7. from a radial line which bears North 12°51'44" East, along a non-tangent curve
concave to the south, having a radius of 1,014.54 feet, westerly 249.13 feet along said
curve through a central angle of 14°04'10";
8. South 45°08'07" West, a distance of 104.93 feet;
9. North 89°51'53" West, a distance of 196.45 feet;
10. North 44°51'53" West, a distance of 186.22 feet;

Board Packet 
Page 76 of 157



thence continuing along said westerly line and the northerly prolongation thereof, 
North 00°08'07" East, a distance of 89.17 feet to the north line of said Section 33; 

thence along said northerly line, South 89°51'49" East, a distance of 28.50 feet; 

thence South 22°19'53" West, a distance of 22.50 feet; 

thence along said northerly prolongation and the northerly and easterly lines of said sewer 
easement the following ten (10) arcs, courses and distances: 

1. South 00°08'07" West, a distance of 60.06 feet;
2. South 44°51'53" East, a distance of 169.65 feet;
3. South 89°51'53" East, a distance of 179.88 feet;
4. North 45°08'07" East, a distance of 104.61 feet;
5. from a radial line which bears North 01°39'10" West, along a non-tangent curve
concave to the south, having a radius of 1,034.54 feet, easterly 262.10 feet along said
curve through a central angle of 14°30'58";
6. South 77°00'55" East, a distance of 222.03 feet;
7. along a tangent curve concave to the southwest, having a radius of 462.13 feet,
southeasterly 356.47 feet along said curve through a central angle of 44°11'47"; thence
South 29°35'54" East, a distance of 20.55 feet;
8. from a radial line which bears North 64°02'04" East, along a non-tangent curve
concave to the west, having a radius of 363.24 feet, southerly 135.68 feet along said
curve through a central angle of 21°24'06";
9. South 04°33'50" East, a distance of 1,231.13 feet;
10. South 00°52'46" East, a distance of 714.87 feet to the northerly line of that certain
sewer easement conveyed to the Sacramento Area Sewer District in Book 20090727 of
Official Records, at Page 846, said County records;

thence along said northerly line, North 89°07'14" East, a distance of 8.59 feet; 

thence South 00°30'39" East, a distance of 97.02 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
Containing 1.640 acres, more or less. 

See Exhibit 'B', Plat to accompany description, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

END OF DESCRIPTION 

PREPARED BY WOOD RODGERS, INC 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

Board Packet 
Page 77 of 157



EXHIBIT B 

Board Packet 
Page 78 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 79 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.8 

TITLE: Authorization to Submit Grant Application 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-4: Authorizing the General 
Manager to Submit Application for Grant Funding with State of California 
Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 
2019/2020. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) has identified a funding opportunity through the State 
of California Department of Water Resources (DWR) under the Flood Maintenance Assistance 
Program (FMAP) for 2019/2020.  The FMAP program provides State funds for eligible maintenance 
activities to Local Maintaining Agencies, like RD 1000.  The program was started to help ensure that 
State Plan of Flood Control facilities are properly maintained and have sufficient resources, including 
funding, to meet applicable federal regulations and Operation and Maintenance (O&M) manual 
requirements.  The District is currently under an FMAP funding agreement with DWR, executed on 
May 15, 2019 for 2018/2019.  The District desires to apply for another grant in 2019/2020 for 
identified maintenance and equipment needs.   

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-4 Authorizing 
the General Manager to Submit Application for Grant Funding with State of California Department of 
Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 2019/2020. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-4 Authorizing 
the General Manager to to Submit Application for Grant Funding with State of California Department 
of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 2019/2020. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Up to $601,337 in grant revenue in Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2019-8-4: Authorizing the General Manager to Submit Application for Grant
Funding with State of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance
Assistance Program 2019/2020.

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 80 of 157



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDING 

WITH STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES –  
FLOOD MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 2019/2020 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District 
Office on the 9th day of August 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of Reclamation District No. 1000 (“District”) 
is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved 
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has a progressive history of providing flood protection and 
maintaining the District’s levee system; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has identified certain maintenance and equipment needs that 
further the goals and objectives of the District; and,   

WHEREAS, the District has identified potential funding through the California 
Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) Flood Maintenance Assistance Program funds 
under Budget Act of 2018 (Stats. 2018, Ch. 29, Item 3860-001-0001); and,  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to submit an 
application for funding through DWR.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 
No. 1000 hereby authorize the General Manager to submit an application for grant funding with 
State of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 
2019/2020. 

AGENDA ITEM 5.8
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 81 of 157



 ON A MOTION BY Trustee _______, seconded by Trustee ______, the foregoing 
resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, 
this 9th day of August 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 0 Trustees: 

NOES:  0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN:  0 Trustees: 

RECUSE:  0 Trustees: 

ABSENT:  0 Trustees:  

______________________________________ 

Jeff Smith 

President, Board of Trustees 

Reclamation District No. 1000 

Board Packet 
Page 82 of 157



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution 2019-8-4 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
at the regular meeting held on the 9th of August 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

________________________________ 

Joleen Gutierrez, District Secretary 

Board Packet 
Page 83 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 84 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 85 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 86 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 87 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 88 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 89 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 90 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 91 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 92 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 93 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 94 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 95 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 96 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 97 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 98 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 99 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 100 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 101 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 102 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 103 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 104 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 105 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 106 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 107 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 108 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 109 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 110 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 111 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 112 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 113 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 114 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 115 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 116 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 117 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 118 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 119 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 120 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 121 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.9 

TITLE: Authorization to Execute Funding Agreement 

SUBJECT: Review and Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-5 Authorizing General 
Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State of California Department of 
Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Reclamation District 1000 (District; RD 1000) submitted a grant application to the California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) under the Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP) on 
July 31, 2019.  The FMAP program provides State funds for eligible maintenance activities to Local 
Maintaining Agencies, like RD 1000.  The program was started to help ensure that State Plan of Flood 
Control facilities are properly maintained and have sufficient resources, including funding, to meet 
applicable federal regulations and Operation and Maintenance (O&M) manual requirements.   

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-5 Authorizing 
the General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State of California Department of Water 
Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the Board review and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2019-8-5 Authorizing 
the General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement with State of California Department of Water 
Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance Program 2019/2020. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Up to $601,337 in grant revenue in Fiscal Year 2019/2020. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2019-8-5: Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Funding Agreement
with State of California Department of Water Resources – Flood Maintenance Assistance
Program 2019/2020.

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 122 of 157



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE FUNDING AGREEMENT  

WITH STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES –  
FLOOD MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 2019/2020 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 held at the District 
Office on the 9th day of August 2019, the following resolution was approved and adopted: 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of Reclamation District No. 1000 (“District”) 
is a reclamation district created by act of the legislature of the State of California, approved 
April 8, 1911; and, 

WHEREAS, the District is a California Public Agency with responsibility for flood 
maintenance and land use authority of the Project facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the District has a progressive history of providing flood protection and 
maintaining the District’s levee system; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has identified certain maintenance and equipment needs that 
further the goals and objectives of the District; and,   

WHEREAS, the District has applied for California Department of Water Resources 
(“DWR”) Flood Maintenance Assistance Program funds under Budget Act of 2018 (Stats. 2018, 
Ch. 29, Item 3860-001-0001); and,  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the District General Manager to execute a 
Funding Agreement and any amendments thereto with DWR for the 2019/2020 Flood 
Maintenance Assistance Program; and  

WHEREAS, the District acknowledges that it must submit a new operations, 
maintenance, repair, rehabilitation, and replacement agreement with the Central Valley Flood 
Protection Board prior to the receipt of Flood Maintenance Assistance Program funds and 
desires to authorize the General Manager to execute said agreement. 

AGENDA ITEM 5.9
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 123 of 157



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 
No. 1000 hereby authorize the General Manager to execute a Funding Agreement and accept 
funds pursuant and subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Safe Drinking Water, water 
Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006, and Disaster 
Preparedness and Flood Prevention Bond Act of 2006. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
hereby authorize the General Manager to prepare the necessary data, make investigations, and 
take other such actions as necessary and appropriate to obtain funding for the 2019/2020 Flood 
Maintenance Assistance Program. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
hereby authorize and directs the General Manager to execute a an operation, maintenance, 
repair, rehabilitation, and replacement agreement with the Central Valley Flood Protection 
Board, or successor thereto. 

 ON A MOTION BY Trustee _______, seconded by Trustee ______, the foregoing 
resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000, 
this 9th day of August 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 0 Trustees: 

NOES:  0 Trustees: 

ABSTAIN:  0 Trustees: 

RECUSE:  0 Trustees: 

ABSENT:  0 Trustees:  

______________________________________ 

Jeff Smith 

President, Board of Trustees 

Reclamation District No. 1000 

Board Packet 
Page 124 of 157



CERTIFICATION: 

I, Joleen Gutierrez, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1000, hereby certify that the foregoing 
Resolution 2019-8-5 was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
at the regular meeting held on the 9th of August 2019 and made a part of the minutes thereof. 

________________________________ 

Joleen Gutierrez, District Secretary 

Board Packet 
Page 125 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 126 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 127 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 128 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 129 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 130 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 131 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 132 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 133 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 134 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 135 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 136 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 137 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 138 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 139 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 140 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 141 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 142 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 143 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 144 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 145 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 146 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 147 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 148 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 149 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 150 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 151 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 152 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.1 

TITLE: Senate Bill 415 (Hueso) – Voter Participation  

SUBJECT: Review and Discuss Impacts of Senate Bill 415 (Hueso) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Senate Bill 415 (Hueso), also known as the California Voter Participation Rights Act (CVPRA), 
added sections 14050 – 14057 to the Elections Code as of January 1, 2016 (Attachment 1). 

Elections Code section 14052(a) prohibits a political subdivision from holding an election other 
than on a statewide election date "if holding an election on a nonconcurrent date has previously 
resulted in a significant decrease in voter turnout." 

The purpose of the CVPRA was to increase voter participation in local elections by holding them 
at the same time as a statewide election date, for example either the statewide direct primary in 
June of even-numbered years, or the statewide general election in November of even-numbered 
years. "Off-cycle" or "non-concurrent" elections are held on a date that does not coincide with 
the statewide direct primary election in June or the statewide general election in November of 
even-numbered years. 

The CVPRA defines a "significant decrease in voter turnout" as voter turnout for a regularly 
scheduled election in a political subdivision that "is at least 25 percent less than the average voter 
turnout within that political subdivision for the previous four statewide general elections." (Elec. 
Code § 14051(b).) 

While the law does not specify how to calculate the 25 percent threshold, it is common for 
political subdivisions to experience a "significant decrease in voter turnout" no matter how the 
value is calculated because historically voter turnout for a statewide general election is 
significantly higher than turnout in any off–cycle election. 

The bill requires a political subdivision to consolidate its elections with a statewide election date 
(June or November of even-numbered years) if its voter turnout numbers do not satisfy the 
CVPRA threshold. 

Elections Code sections 10404.5 and 10405.7 require a resolution requesting consolidation of 
elections to be submitted to the board of supervisors no later than 240 days prior to the date of 
the election to be consolidated (e.g., if the election to be consolidated will be held in November 
of 2019, submissions are due in March of 2019). The board of supervisors must approve the 
resolution requesting consolidation within 60 days, unless it finds the ballot style, voting 
equipment, or computer capacity is such that additional elections or materials cannot be 
handled. 

Board Packet 
Page 153 of 157



The CVPRA became law on January 1, 2016, but was not fully operative until January 1, 2018. 
(Elec. Code § 14057.) The delayed implementation is also reflected in the "safe harbor" provision 
at Elections Code section 14052(b), which permits a political subdivision to hold an election other 
than on a statewide election date "if, by January 1, 2018, the political subdivision has adopted a 
plan to consolidate a future election with a statewide election not later than the November 8, 
2022, statewide general election." 

If a political subdivision fails to comply with the CVPRA by January 1, 2018, local citizens have the 
right to file a lawsuit to force consolidation of the regular election date with a statewide election 
date. If a violation of the CVPRA is proven, Elections Code section 14053 gives courts broad 
powers to impose specified remedies: 

• Order a political subdivision to hold its elections on a date that is concurrent with a
statewide election date;

• Order upgrades to election equipment or the systems supporting election equipment; or

• Order a county board of supervisors to approve a political subdivision’s request to
consolidate its elections with a statewide election date.

The CVPRA permits prevailing plaintiffs to collect attorney’s fees and costs, including expert 
witness fees. If political subdivision prevails, it is not entitled to costs unless the court finds the 
case was frivolous, unreasonable, or without foundation. (Elec. Code § 14054.) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

None. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Senate Bill 415 (Hueso) – Voter Participation.

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 154 of 157



AGENDA ITEM 6.1
ATTACHMENT NO. 1

Board Packet 
Page 155 of 157



Board Packet 
Page 156 of 157



DATE:  August 9, 2019 AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1.1 

TITLE: Committee Meeting Minutes 

SUBJECT: Meeting Minutes from Committee Meetings Since the July Board Meeting 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

Executive Committee Meeting – July 31, 2019 

A meeting of the Reclamation District 1000 Executive Committee was held on Wednesday, July 
31, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. at the District office.  In attendance were Trustees Barandas, Smith and 
Harris.  Staff in attendance was General Manager King No members of the public were present 
and therefore no public comments were made. 

General Manager King presented the proposed agenda for the August 9, 2019 Board of Trustees 
meeting.  The Executive Committee approved the August 9, 2019 Board Agenda and with no 
further business on the Executive Committee Agenda, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 a.m.   

STAFF RESPONSIBLE FOR REPORT: 

____________________________________________ Date: 08/05/2019 
Kevin L. King, General Manager 

Board Packet 
Page 157 of 157


	BOT Agenda August 2019.pdf
	4.1
	4.1 General Managers Report_08052019.pdf
	4.1 Attachment 1 SAFCA Report.pdf
	4.1 Attachment 2 LAFCO Nomination Form.pdf

	4.2
	4.2 Superintendent Report July 2019.pdf
	4.2 Attachment 1 Superintendent Report July 2019.pdf

	4.3
	5.1
	5.1 Board Minutes July 2019 Staff Report.pdf
	5.1 Attachment 1 July 2019 Minutes.pdf

	5.2
	5.2 Treasurer's Report July 2019_Staff Report.pdf
	5.2 Attachment 1 Treasurer's Report Fiscal July 2019.pdf

	5.3
	5.3 Expenditure Report  July 2019 Staff Report.pdf
	5.3 Attachment 1 July Expenditure Report.pdf

	5.4
	5.4 Budget to Actual Report Staff Report July 2019.pdf
	5.4 Attachment 1 Budget to Actual Report June  2019 YE Final.pdf
	5.4 Attachment 2 Budget to Actual Report July 2019.pdf

	5.5
	5.5 Grant of Easement_08052019.pdf
	5.5 Resoultion 2019_08_01.pdf
	5.5 Resolution Attachment 1.pdf

	5.6
	5.6 Acceptance of Facility Easement_08052019.pdf
	5.6 Attachment 1 Resoultion 2019_08_02.pdf
	5.6 Certificate of Acceptance Reso 2019_08_02.pdf
	CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

	5.6 Resolution 2019_08_02 Attachment 1 Grant of Facility Easement.pdf

	5.7
	5.7 Acceptance of Access Easement_08052019.pdf
	5.7 Attachment 1 Resoultion 2019_08_03.pdf
	5.7 Certificate of Acceptance Reso 2019_08_03.pdf
	CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

	5.7 Resolution 2019_08_03 Attachment 1 Grant of Access  Easement .pdf

	5.8
	5.8 Authorization to Submit Grant Application FMAP 2019_2020_08052019.pdf
	5.8 Attachment 1 Resoultion 2019_08_04.pdf
	5.8 Resolution Attachment 1 FMAP_19-20  RD 1000 2019.07.31final.pdf

	5.9
	5.9 FMAP Funding Agreement_08052019.pdf
	5.9 Attachment 1 Resoultion 2019_08_05.pdf
	5.9 Resolution 2019_08_05 Attachment 1.pdf

	6.1
	6.1 Senate Bill 415.pdf
	6.1 Attachment 1 SB 415.pdf

	7.1.1



